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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Good afternoon.

          3  This meeting of the General Welfare Committee is

          4  called to order. I would like to thank the Public

          5  Advocate for joining us and I will turn to her in a

          6  moment to talk to her about her legislation, which

          7  is very important.  And we're very happy to be

          8  having this hearing, especially this time of year

          9  when hopefully everyone is thinking about all of the

         10  people in their lives, and I think the Public

         11  Advocate has done something very, very important, in

         12  terms of creating a piece of legislation that

         13  responds to the reality of people's lives and

         14  particularly those trying to help others.

         15                 I also would like to welcome Council

         16  Member Annabel Palma, a member of the General

         17  Welfare Committee. I want to thank the staff who

         18  worked so hard to prepare this hearing, Christina

         19  Monsoki (phonetic) of the Public Advocate's Office

         20  and Molly Murphy and Migna Taveras of the General

         21  Welfare Committee.

         22                 Now, today's topic is introduction

         23  565-A. It's a bill that would prohibit employment

         24  discrimination based on individual status as a

         25  caregiver.
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          2                 Now, we know that New York City has

          3  done a very good job in terms of its Human Rights

          4  Law over the years of creating a strong and in many

          5  ways comprehensive approach, but we also understand

          6  that the world is constantly changing and the Human

          7  Rights Law needs to be updated and looked at at all

          8  times to make sure it conforms to the reality of

          9  people's lives. And right now even though our Human

         10  Rights Law does protect many important categories of

         11  citizens of this City, it doesn't protect

         12  individuals against discrimination in the workplace

         13  who have family members to care for, whether that

         14  means children or elderly parents or inlaws or

         15  disabled family members.

         16                 We have hundreds of thousands of New

         17  Yorkers in the situation of providing intense care,

         18  much of their days, much of their weeks going to

         19  care for family members and loved ones and all those

         20  categories, and in many cases, as I mentioned

         21  earlier, in the case of people in the so-called

         22  sandwich generation, people who are taking care of

         23  children and elderly parents simultaneously while

         24  holding down a full-time job. It's clear that the

         25  changes that have occurred in our society are
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          2  putting more and more pressure on families and more

          3  and more pressure on workers, and it's time to

          4  recognize that and to act on the Public Advocate's

          5  bill to ensure people are not discriminated against

          6  on top of the other challenges they are facing.

          7                 Now, it is particularly true with

          8  low-income workers, because when they have to end up

          9  choosing between their job and their family, that's

         10  a particularly difficult and in many cases tragic

         11  choice.

         12                 Lots of folks don't have the luxury

         13  of being able to walk away from their job to do the

         14  right thing by their family members. And that,

         15  unfortunately, is something that they may be forced

         16  to do today because of the absence of these

         17  protections.

         18                 Now, some of the numbers are really

         19  striking. According to the family caregiver

         20  alliance, an estimated 44 million plus people in

         21  this country are caregivers to adult loved ones who

         22  live in the home and many caregivers provide

         23  informal care without any government assistance

         24  whatsoever.

         25                 In New York State the numbers are
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          2  growing. There were about 1.9 million that category

          3  in 2004 and now the estimate is 2.2 million. So, in

          4  just three years time, 300,000 more New Yorkers

          5  providing care.

          6                 And we all know the baby boom

          7  generation is growing, and that's increasing the

          8  number of people who are senior citizens.

          9                 Now in New York State 1.3 million

         10  people over the age of 60 who need care already. We

         11  are also seeing another important trend that's

         12  happened over many decades now, more and more women

         13  working outside the home. And I think in some ways

         14  our law and our society is only beginning to catch

         15  up with that reality.

         16                 Obviously this burden we're talking

         17  about today falls particularly hard on women and

         18  particularly women who are simultaneously taking

         19  care of young children and in many cases other

         20  family members as well.

         21                 And I mentioned earlier disabled

         22  individuals are a big part of this equation as well.

         23                 According to the US Census Report in

         24  the Year 2000, disability in American families,

         25  almost a third of American families have at least
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          2  one disabled family member. And nearly one in ten

          3  families with children under 18 includes a disabled

          4  child. Now, the federal Equal Employment Opportunity

          5  Commission, recently recognized this issue and

          6  stated that workers between the ages of 30 and 60

          7  will be more likely to face work responsibilities

          8  alongside of both child care and elder care

          9  responsibilities. And the EEOC issued guidelines in

         10  May of this year instructing employers on how to

         11  avoid discrimination against caregivers. Guidelines

         12  which we certainly appreciate but not protections.

         13                 Federal laws have some meaning in

         14  application here but not directly. Federal laws,

         15  such as Title 7 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the

         16  Americans With Disabilities Act 1990, most recently

         17  during the Clinton Administration the federal Family

         18  Medical Leave Act. They all offer some protection by

         19  prohibiting discrimination in other ways based on

         20  gender or disability and they do require employers

         21  to grant unpaid leave, and that is important because

         22  it recognizes the growing challenges, and although

         23  it's not in any way as strong as the protections

         24  we're talking about, under these laws or using these

         25  laws, more employees have been filing lawsuits to
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          2  respond to the situations they face, which are

          3  phrased as quote/unquote family responsibilities

          4  discrimination.

          5                 According to a study done by the

          6  University of California Law School of Hastings,

          7  there were only eight such lawsuits in the

          8  seventies, there were 97 such lawsuits from the late

          9  eighties to mid-nineties and now, in the last

         10  ten-year period, almost 500 such lawsuits. And these

         11  have been particularly, one of the states that have

         12  had a particularly large number of such lawsuits has

         13  been New York. Again, this is people trying to work

         14  with existing laws as best they can but not having

         15  the explicit protections they should have. And these

         16  federal laws do not per se prohibit employment

         17  discrimination based on caregiving status as the

         18  Public Advocate's bill would.

         19                 Just to finish the comparison of

         20  what's going on around the country, Alaska's Human

         21  Rights Law includes parenthood as a protected class

         22  against workplace discrimination, and that's a step

         23  in the right direction. But the only jurisdiction

         24  that goes to the logical point of preventing

         25  discrimination preventing discrimination based on
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          2  family responsibilities, the only jurisdiction in

          3  this country is the district of Columbia. And it's

          4  crucial, not only for the good of New York families,

          5  but also for the evolution of this issue around the

          6  country, it's crucial that the Public Advocate's

          7  bill pass, because I think this will certainly serve

          8  as a model for the entire country.

          9                 And before I turn to the Public

         10  Advocate, I just would like to welcome Council

         11  Member Tom White of Queens, a member of the General

         12  Welfare Committee. And with that I say thank you

         13  very much to our Public Advocate for creating this

         14  legislation, and we welcome your comments.

         15                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Well, thank

         16  you, Chairman DeBlasio. Especially thank you for

         17  being so supportive of something that I think we all

         18  believe is really important and for the rest of our

         19  colleagues on the City Council who signed on, David

         20  Weprin and Gale Brewer. And to the 20 other Council

         21  members who have signed on since we introduced it.

         22                 I just wanted to thank my staff

         23  again, Mary Maestrapolo, Christine, and Brian and

         24  Mark for all the work that they've been doing, and

         25  there are others and I'm sure I've forgotten them,
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          2  but I want to thank them for the great amount of

          3  work they've done on this long and very hard work

          4  and good research.

          5                 I would also like to thank the

          6  Commissioner, Patricia Gatling, who is not here

          7  today, but she has guided us and her staff has been

          8  very helpful in providing us with information and

          9  things on the bill to include reasonable

         10  accommodation.

         11                 As Public Advocate I am charged with

         12  safeguarding the rights and interests of New York

         13  City. Certainly this piece of legislation is

         14  essential to protecting the rights, and improving

         15  the lives of New York's working caregivers. And

         16  apparently there are almost 2 million people in New

         17  York giving informal care to loved ones and as Bill,

         18  as Chairman DeBlasio has said and I have said, as

         19  the aging, the baby boomers age, we're going to need

         20  more and more and more of these kinds of protections

         21  to help people.

         22                 And nearly six in ten caregivers, 59

         23  percent are working while actively providing care.

         24  And they have to make many work-related adjustments

         25  in order to provide the care for their loved ones.
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          2                 More than half of working caregivers

          3  report that as a result of their caregiving

          4  responsibilities they have to go to work late, they

          5  have to leave early or they have to take time off

          6  during the day to provide care.

          7                 The Center for Working Life reports a

          8  growing trend of federal lawsuits by workers

          9  alleging Family Responsibility Discrimination, FRD.

         10                 Family Responsibility Discrimination

         11  has been defined as a form of sex discrimination

         12  based on gender stereotypes against workers are

         13  treated unfairly at work, because of the informal

         14  caregiving responsibilities for children, elderly

         15  parents or ill relatives. And as Chairman DeBlasio

         16  said, New York is one of the three states with the

         17  greatest number of FDR (sic) lawsuits.

         18                 While the New York City Human Rights

         19  Law is one of the most comprehensive civil rights

         20  laws in the nation, it fails to expressively protect

         21  individuals against employment discrimination based

         22  on caregivers. And Intro. 565-A would prohibit

         23  employment discrimination based on an individual's

         24  actual or perceived status as a caregiver, and

         25  thereby add caregivers to the protected classes
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          2  covered under the employment section of New York

          3  City Human Rights Law.

          4                 Moreover, Intro. 565-A would require

          5  that employers make a reasonable accommodation to

          6  enable caregivers to perform and fulfill the

          7  requirements of their jobs.

          8                 Today can be a turning point for New

          9  York City caregivers as we prepare for these

         10  increasing numbers of people who are doing this and

         11  hope that this City will lead the way in this kind

         12  of legislation.

         13                 Thank you, Chairman DeBlasio.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         15  much, Madam Public Advocate. And we very much

         16  appreciate your efforts.

         17                 And now we will welcome the testimony

         18  of the Deputy Counsel to the Mayor, Bill Heinzen. We

         19  welcome you.

         20                 MR. HEINZEN: Thank you.

         21                 Good afternoon, Public Advocate

         22  Gotbaum, Chairman DeBlasio and members of the

         23  Council. My name is William Heinzen, and I am Deputy

         24  Counselor to the Mayor.

         25                 Thank you for the opportunity today
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          2  to testify regarding Intro. 565-A, which would amend

          3  the City's Human Rights Law to make it illegal for

          4  employers to deny a reasonable accommodation to

          5  persons defined as caregivers.

          6                 As Mayor Bloomberg has made clear,

          7  any form of illegal discrimination in New York City

          8  is unacceptable, offensive, threatens productivity

          9  and will not be tolerated.

         10                 The City has an incredible tradition

         11  of protecting civil rights, and we are proud of our

         12  role in shaping that tradition, in partnership with

         13  the Council.

         14                 Nonetheless, today the Administration

         15  believes that the bill's scope is uncertain and that

         16  to the extent discrimination against caregivers

         17  exists, it can be addressed by existing civil rights

         18  law.

         19                 We also believe that there are

         20  unexamined cost implications for the public and

         21  private sectors, making the bill premature at this

         22  time.

         23                 In terms of those unexamined cost

         24  implications, this bill has an uncertain interplay

         25  with the Family and Medical Leave Act, or FMLA,
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          2  which requires employers to provide employees up to

          3  12 weeks of time off each year to care for a family

          4  member with a "serious health condition" or to care

          5  for a newborn adopted or foster child.

          6                 The FMLA applies to private sector

          7  employers of 50 or more, while the City's Human

          8  Rights Law applies to employers of four or more.

          9  Thus, we believe it can be argued that the bill

         10  would effectively extend the FMLA's coverage to the

         11  City's small businesses, but there is no evidence,

         12  however, that the impact in the business community

         13  has been thoroughly modeled and evaluated or, in

         14  fact, considered.

         15                 Intro. 565-A would also give

         16  employees an argument that they're entitled to more

         17  leave than the FMLA requires because that extra

         18  leave would not impose an undue hardship on an

         19  employer.

         20                 Even though in many cases leave

         21  provided under 565-A could be counted toward meeting

         22  an employer's obligation under the FMLA, I note that

         23  the FMLA's definition of serious health condition is

         24  narrower than the definition of disability in the

         25  Human Rights Law, and certainly narrower than that
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          2  definition is further altered in 565-A, and it thus

          3  may be many cases where an employer provides leave

          4  required under 565-A that would not count toward

          5  meeting the employer's obligation under the FMLA.

          6                 Again, the interplay between this

          7  bill and the FMLA is nowhere mentioned, but its

          8  implications need to be explored.

          9                 Further, I note that the City's Human

         10  Rights Law is by express design broader and more

         11  protective than federal or State Civil Rights Law.

         12  The definition of disability, to cite one pertinent

         13  example, is broader than under State or federal law.

         14                 The City has a long and proud

         15  tradition of advancing human rights and this is

         16  reflected in our very progressive Human Rights Law.

         17                 But it would be at best unusual and I

         18  think counter-productive to amend that law to

         19  address a problem of uncertain scope, to potentially

         20  create a very large pool of potential litigants

         21  before we better understand this issue.

         22                 In fact, to the extent to the people

         23  who are caregivers for family members experience

         24  employment-related setbacks due to discrimination by

         25  their employers, we believe that the current Human
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          2  Rights Law, in addition to federal and State Civil

          3  Rights Law does provide a remedy.

          4                 For this reason, the Administration

          5  believes most, if not all instances of

          6  employment-related actions that are characterized as

          7  caregiver discrimination or family responsibilities

          8  discrimination, can be addressed by the existing

          9  prohibitions against sex and disability

         10  discrimination.

         11                 Further, to the extent such actions

         12  may be traceable to race-based stereotypes and

         13  assumptions or those based on nationality, these

         14  could also be addressed under the City's current

         15  law.

         16                 We believe this conclusion is

         17  strongly supported by the federal Equal Employment

         18  Opportunity Commission.

         19                 Federal law does not prohibit

         20  discrimination against caregivers per se, but the

         21  EEEO recently issued guidance on the issue of

         22  caregiver discrimination as Chairman DeBlasio has

         23  mentioned.

         24                 That guidance does not create a new

         25  protected class. But instead, it illustrates
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          2  circumstances in which sex stereotyping may violate

          3  Title 7. As an example, an employer could refuse to

          4  hire a woman with young children out of concern that

          5  she will be less productive than other employees.

          6  That decision would provide grounds for a sex

          7  discrimination claim, because the woman could allege

          8  that she has suffered from sex-based stereotyping.

          9                 Moreover, in addition to prohibiting

         10  discrimination against a qualified worker, because

         11  of his or her own disability, the Americans With

         12  Disabilities Act prohibits discrimination because of

         13  the disability of an individual with whom a worker

         14  has a relationship or association, such as a child,

         15  spouse or parent.

         16                 This protection is very broad under

         17  the ADA. The City's Human Rights Law also provides

         18  this protection. Thus, if an employer refused to

         19  promote an employee because they were caring for a

         20  family member with a disability and the employer

         21  assumed that they would not be able to handle more

         22  work. That employee would have a claim under both

         23  the ADA and existing City law.

         24                 Although we support the goals of this

         25  bill, we do not support it as written, because we do
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          2  not believe there has been sufficient study of its

          3  actual effect on the public and private sectors.

          4                 More importantly, we believe that the

          5  root issues are properly and adequately addressed by

          6  existing Human Rights Law.

          7                 We would, of course, be willing to

          8  work with the Council and the Human Rights

          9  Commission to develop more information about

         10  different types of workplace discrimination, and to

         11  explore different options for addressing it,

         12  including public outreach and education.

         13                 Thank you very much, and I'm happy to

         14  answer any questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         16  much for your testimony.

         17                 I'd like to allow the Public

         18  Advocate, who is obviously the creator of the bill,

         19  to begin the questioning.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you

         21  very much for your comments. Clearly we want to work

         22  with you to come to some kind of an agreement on how

         23  we might do this.

         24                 I have in front of me the US EEO

         25  Commission report and here it very clearly states
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          2  that in spite of what you said, there are some

          3  states or local laws which provide broader

          4  protections for caregivers, and I think that's what

          5  we are trying to do here. We want to make sure that

          6  there are these broad protections in New York City

          7  at this time because we see (a) what's coming. We

          8  know it's already happening. So, I would like you to

          9  explain how to reconcile those two.

         10                 MR. HEINZEN: Thank you. I appreciate

         11  that, Madam Public Advocate. We are not disputing

         12  that there are laws in other jurisdictions, I

         13  believe Washington DC is maybe foremost among those.

         14                 The argument is that it is not that

         15  there are not broader -- not laws purporting to give

         16  broader protections in other jurisdictions, but that

         17  existing City Human Rights Law already provides

         18  adequate coverage for people who may experience

         19  those forms of discrimination whether under

         20  disability-related discrimination or gender or race

         21  discrimination.

         22                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Well, I

         23  think that reasonable people can differ.

         24                 MR. HEINZEN: Absolutely.

         25                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: So these may
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          2  be some of the things we need to work out as we move

          3  along.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm confused by

          5  some of your testimony and I'm a little troubled by

          6  some of the assumptions. So, let me just take you

          7  back a step here.

          8                 Let me begin by asking, since

          9  obviously you prepared carefully for this hearing,

         10  to what extent do you think we have a problem in

         11  this City with people who are caregivers for loved

         12  ones facing discrimination in the workplace? Or

         13  facing difficulties in the workplace that they are

         14  not protected for?

         15                 MR. HEINZEN: I think that we have

         16  anecdotal evidence that there are issues. I don't

         17  feel prepared to comment on the extent of any

         18  problem.

         19                 We understand the issue, and we're

         20  concerned with any issue that involves employment

         21  discrimination or any form of discrimination. But

         22  sitting here, I don't have any statistics, I haven't

         23  seen any statistics that indicate the full scope of

         24  this problem in New York City or in the country.

         25                 I'm familiar with the broader
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          2  statistics that we're provided about the possible

          3  number of people who are caregivers, whether an

          4  older member of the family or a younger member of

          5  the family.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, you're

          7  familiar with the fact that the federal EEOC, we

          8  talked about this and you mentioned the issue of the

          9  guidelines in May of this year --

         10                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I would say

         12  that would be rather important evidence that there

         13  is a growing problem.

         14                 MR. HEINZEN: Right. I'm not disputing

         15  the existence of a problem, Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, I guess I'm

         17  trying to understand.

         18                 It seems to me that everything I laid

         19  out and everything the public advocate laid out in

         20  our opening presentations affirms the fact that more

         21  and more people are in the situation of having to

         22  take care of loved ones, it is really a seismic

         23  shift in our society. The combination of the baby

         24  boom generation on the one hand aging, the changes

         25  that have occurred in terms of families and
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          2  two-income families, the role of women in the

          3  workplace, that all of this has come together really

          4  only in the last few decades. That obviously was the

          5  reason it's very explicit in the EEOC's work, that

          6  that's what led to them believing they have to issue

          7  guidelines. There obviously was the motivation in a

          8  similar way for the Family and Medical Leave Act,

          9  and we have over 8 million people in this City and

         10  by definition, just looking at the numbers we laid

         11  out, hundreds of thousands of them in this

         12  situation.

         13                 So, if you're saying you don't have

         14  evidence, I appreciate that. If you're

         15  simultaneously saying you believe there is a

         16  problem, I would say the Public Advocate is trying

         17  to do something constructive about it, how do you

         18  want to engage that?

         19                 MR. HEINZEN: Thank you. I'm very

         20  familiar with the demographic information that you

         21  put forward earlier today, and it's been put forward

         22  here and it has been referred to in the EEO

         23  guidance. I think it's interesting. I think it's

         24  very persuasive. I am a member of that sandwich

         25  generation. I am familiar with many of these
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          2  pressures up and down and left and right sometimes.

          3                 I think that definitely the

          4  groundwork has been laid for an evaluation of the

          5  problem and for -- I mean, I would say the evidence

          6  put forward brings me to -- brings us to a point,

          7  and that point is recognizing that conditions are

          8  right for more and more people being in the

          9  workplace, being pulled by these kinds of pressures

         10  and problems.

         11                 We're not disputing that. What we're

         12  saying is, we don't have any specific data or facts

         13  about the actual extent of that discrimination. I

         14  know that it's been suggested that there has been an

         15  increase in those lawsuits brought in New York. I

         16  don't know what the number is. Off the top of my

         17  head, it wouldn't surprise me that New York would

         18  have more such lawsuits than other jurisdictions,

         19  simply because we're New York, we have a

         20  significantly larger population than almost any

         21  other place in the country.

         22                 But, again, I don't know what the

         23  actual data are underlying some of the reports I've

         24  heard referred to.

         25                 We'd like to do that. We'd like to

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  explore that jointly with the Public Advocate, with

          3  the Council. We're not shutting down to that. What

          4  we're saying is today we're not prepared to support

          5  this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have any

          7  current plan to study this problem?

          8                 MS. HEINZEN: I can say today we will

          9  commit to work with you to study the problem. We

         10  don't have a task force. I don't have a blueprint,

         11  but I'd be very happy to work with you and the

         12  Administration would on developing that blueprint.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         14  that. I appreciate that you, yourself, have

         15  experienced some of this. I certainly have as well,

         16  and I think it's something that's in a sense

         17  under-reported in the public debate, what it's doing

         18  to families who have the dual pressures of children

         19  and aging parents simultaneously. I think we need to

         20  look at this quickly because the trends are moving

         21  so quickly.

         22                 You know apparently the fastest

         23  growing population group in New York City is people

         24  over 85, which is extraordinary.

         25                 MR. HEINZEN: I know that now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, I think

          3  it's literally a situation where we're trying to

          4  catch up with reality.

          5                 I also appreciate that you're here

          6  and I don't want to in any way be flip here by

          7  saying this. We appreciate that you're here and not

          8  the Human Rights Commission, because I think this is

          9  a problem that has to be resolved with the Mayor's

         10  Office.

         11                 I have been concerned over six years

         12  of working with the Human Rights Commission that

         13  every new issue we raise, every concern we raise

         14  that we are seeing at the grassroots level is

         15  answered almost without exception with the answer

         16  that there is no need for additional protections,

         17  that the problem doesn't appear to be valid. And I'm

         18  astounded. Several Administrations ago I worked

         19  closely with the Human Rights Commission, the

         20  assumption was if people are raising a problem, we

         21  wanted to validate it and look into it and act on

         22  it, not disclaim its existence.

         23                 So, I appreciate you are starting at

         24  least with the assumption that there is something to

         25  talk about, and I think those conversations will be
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          2  much more productive with the Mayor's Office than

          3  with the Human Rights Commission.

          4                 I just wanted to raise a couple of

          5  more things, I know my colleagues have questions.

          6                 So, in terms of looking at actions

          7  taken so far, cases before the Human Rights

          8  Commission that, complaints that were filed that

          9  might speak to this exact type of situation, have

         10  there been, in preparation for your testimony today,

         11  was there any analysis of recent cases to look at

         12  how many might in fact have been because of

         13  caregiver status?

         14                 MR. HEINZEN: Chairman, I apologize,

         15  my preparation for this testimony began somewhat

         16  recently. I am not familiar with that information.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         18                 MR. HEINZEN: But I would tell you

         19  that we will work with the Human Rights Commission

         20  to get that information.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That would

         22  obviously be very valuable.

         23                 I would also like to note, I

         24  appreciated your points about other protected

         25  categories that could have meaning for this
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          2  discussion, but I would like to just state the

          3  obvious. You mentioned gender-based discrimination

          4  as an issue in terms of protecting the rights of

          5  female parents. Obviously more and more --

          6                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes, and male parents as

          7  well. I would argue to the extent, I mean we live in

          8  a country where despite many shifts women still do

          9  the bulk of caregiving, and I think that there are

         10  men who are caregivers who suffer for that in the

         11  workplace, because they are seen as less reliable or

         12  less committed. So, I think that that's not

         13  something that would just provide protection to

         14  women but to men as well, existing sex

         15  discrimination laws.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, if that's

         17  the case, and I'm not sure that is how a lot of

         18  people understand it, nor am I sure that the

         19  increasing number of men who are caregivers

         20  understand that they have that right through that

         21  protected class.

         22                 I appreciate your point about the ADA

         23  and the City Human Rights Law in terms of

         24  disability. I think taking a responsibility for the

         25  health care needs of a loved one is very different
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          2  than the argument you could make about parenthood,

          3  the argument you could make about caring for someone

          4  who is disabled per se. I think what we're seeing

          5  more and more of, particularly with this phenomenon

          6  of people living a lot longer and having much more

          7  complicated health care needs, is more and more time

          8  and energy being put into taking care of the

          9  day-to-day needs, in such a manner that the current

         10  law would not identify a way to consider that a

         11  protected class.

         12                 So, I think part of why I feel so

         13  strongly about the Public Advocate's legislation is,

         14  and you experienced it, I experienced it, I bet a

         15  lot of people in this room have experienced it, it

         16  is the endless health care needs that aging parents

         17  have and other members of the family, but let's look

         18  at aging parents as an obvious example. I just don't

         19  see how that is covered by our current Human Rights

         20  Law. I don't hear you saying that you believe that

         21  particular -- you may be saying that you don't have

         22  statistics, but I don't hear you saying you believe

         23  there is a clear way of covering that type of

         24  situation right now, if that results in workplace

         25  discrimination.
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          2                 MR. HEINZEN: Well, I would want to

          3  look at a particular factual situation, I guess.

          4                 Our point is we believe that most of

          5  these issues can be covered by the existing law.

          6  But, you know, as I said earlier, our other point is

          7  we are very willing to work with you, we are anxious

          8  to continue to explore this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right, I

         10  will just conclude quickly, I am not a lawyer, will

         11  not engage you in a legal discussion that you'll

         12  probably win, but I will say, as someone trying to

         13  apply common sense, I'm perplexed by the notion that

         14  you believe this legislation would in effect extend

         15  the Family and Medical Leave Act protections to the

         16  smaller employers. I'm just not following. This is

         17  meant to protect against discrimination. This is not

         18  referred to providing additional benefits. So, I

         19  just want to say, I just feel in the vain of not

         20  letting something go unsaid, that I have trouble

         21  following that reasoning.

         22                 MR. HEINZEN: I appreciate that and I

         23  apologize for that confusion. My understanding, and

         24  perhaps this is even just a failure of my own

         25  understanding or part of the problem we have, which
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          2  is we're not fully understanding the implications of

          3  this bill, is that if someone were to seek leave

          4  under this law, the employer would have to

          5  accommodate that, unless they could show a

          6  reasonable, and show an undue hardship. And that

          7  would apply to businesses of all sizes. Because the

          8  FMLA only applies to businesses over 50 employers,

          9  as the Human Rights Law applies to businesses over

         10  four employees. So that we would essentially be

         11  extending those protections to a whole new class of

         12  businesses in New York City. That may be a good

         13  thing, but I think we should discuss what that means

         14  in terms of policy and in terms of fiscal

         15  implications.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. I

         17  honestly believe, I won't speak for the creator of

         18  the bill, but I will say from our reading we don't

         19  see it that way.

         20                 MR. HEINZEN: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But we will

         22  have that ongoing conversation.

         23                 Let me take a moment now to welcome

         24  Council Member Jimmy Vacca.

         25                 I see you back there. Jimmy Vacca of
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          2  the Bronx, a member of this Committee, and Council

          3  Member Jessica Lappin of Manhattan, also a member of

          4  the General Welfare Committee.

          5                 I know Council Member Helen Foster is

          6  on her way, and I'd like to give the next

          7  opportunity to question to Council Member Tom White.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 I have a affixed my name to the

         11  proposed legislation. In your testimony that you've

         12  given, the Family Medical Leave Act and the City

         13  law, what is the criteria for one who applies for

         14  the FMLA?

         15                 MR. HEINZEN: My understanding,

         16  Councilman, is that the FMLA's protections apply to

         17  people who work in a business with over 50

         18  employees, and to people who have worked in a

         19  business for at least 12 months.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: But it says an

         21  employee can receive up to 12 weeks of time.

         22                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes, paid or unpaid.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Paid or unpaid.

         24                 MR. HEINZEN: That's at the discretion

         25  of the employer. But you must, if you have worked in
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          2  a business -- if you have worked in one location for

          3  over 12 months, the employer must allow you to take

          4  up to 12 weeks of unpaid year per year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Unpaid?

          6                 MR. HEINZEN: Unpaid.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. So that

          8  is a hardship there, too. I mean, you know, to take

          9  off 12 weeks --

         10                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes, I agree.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And you don't

         12  get paid. And you're a caregiver, it does create the

         13  hardship.

         14                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes, to the employee it

         15  does.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: To the

         17  employee.

         18                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: In terms of the

         20  person returning back to that job, they're

         21  protected?

         22                 MR. HEINZEN: That's my understanding.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That's your

         24  legal understanding.

         25                 MR. HEINZEN: That's my legal
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          2  understanding, Councilman. But I haven't looked at

          3  that specific bill, so I would -- if I were your

          4  lawyer I would hate to sign an opinion saying that

          5  because I would rather study the language of the

          6  bill, even for five minutes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, I'm just

          8  saying that's your testimony.

          9                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: So I'm only

         11  going by your testimony to get clarity --

         12                 MR. HEINZEN: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: -- On the 50

         14  employees and more. And I believe the City is 12

         15  employees.

         16                 MR. HEINZEN: Four.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Four employees.

         18                 MR. HEINZEN: That's my understanding,

         19  yes, four.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: So, now, in

         21  your testimony, if I were to put it all together,

         22  there is an assumption that the existing laws do

         23  cover the current situation as it relates to people

         24  who are caregivers.

         25                 MR. HEINZEN: Our argument, sir, is

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  that existing laws provide several protections and

          3  that most, if not all people, in these situations,

          4  we think would have a remedy under the existing law.

          5                 You know, Chairman DeBlasio and I

          6  were just discussing that, and I think there is

          7  clearly room for disagreement on that and there is

          8  clearly room for further conversation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, I don't

         10  think we're trying to be disagreeable, or to have a

         11  conversation.

         12                 MR. HEINZEN: I appreciate that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I think we're

         14  trying to, based on the Public Advocate, we're

         15  trying to take a look at a situation for citizens in

         16  the City, who need certain protections and who need

         17  not just understanding, but some legislation that

         18  would help them provide for their loved ones.

         19                 I believe that, I could be wrong, but

         20  by the Year 2010 to '12, 60 to 65 percent of the

         21  City residents will be senior citizens, and the

         22  Family Medical Leave Act was enacted, do you know

         23  when it came into law?

         24                 MR. HEINZEN: 1993, I believe.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.
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          2                 MR. HEINZEN: I believe it was one of

          3  the first acts of President Clinton.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. And the

          5  City's laws to protect the citizens who are

          6  caregivers that you say under the Human Rights

          7  Commission?

          8                 MR. HEINZEN: Well, there are

          9  different provisions of the Human Rights Law that

         10  have been added over the year that protect,

         11  obviously, for race, national origin, also for sex,

         12  and also for disability.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes. Well,

         14  that's basic. That's a basic coverage. But we're not

         15  talking about -- we're talking about taking a look

         16  at what we currently have that was not looked at

         17  before, I believe the Public Advocate has looked at,

         18  and moving towards making sure the caregivers are

         19  covered even more, and not being irresponsible to

         20  their employer who has a business to run, but also

         21  the employee. There are certain obligations they

         22  both have towards one another. And to operate under

         23  the pressure of losing your job, losing your loved

         24  one, not being able to take them to the hospital to

         25  care appoints, or doctors' appointments, children,

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  there are many things. And one of the things that

          3  concerns me is there is this assumption that it's

          4  all based on women doing these things. There's a lot

          5  of men who are caregivers.

          6                 MR. HEINZEN: I agree with that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And the fact

          8  that when we start thinking about legislation, the

          9  legislation that was put into effect basically back

         10  in 1999 I believe you said?

         11                 MR. HEINZEN: The federal FMLA was

         12  1993.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: '93. I think a

         14  lot of things have been like one-sided, okay? I

         15  think that a lot of us men who sit in positions to

         16  make decisions, make them based on being men and not

         17  being sensitive to the fact of what the real subject

         18  is.

         19                 And I think we need to take a look at

         20  that, because we also -- not to digress -- see a lot

         21  of that in terms of when we take a look at violence

         22  in the home and how that is taken in. And there are

         23  men who are victims of domestic violence but they

         24  cannot go to a police station, for ego, or whatever

         25  the case may be. But that's not to digress. I'm
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          2  saying I think the public advocate has done

          3  something wonderful for the caregivers, and that is

          4  to open the door for us to begin to address this

          5  issue, not with just -- I mean, willingness is

          6  great, but we have to have something in place in

          7  which to use as a base to operate from, and I think

          8  this legislation gives us that base. And I think the

          9  fact that the Mayor is willing to work along with

         10  exploring all other avenues because it is

         11  legislation is a great thing and I welcome it.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Council member.

         15                 Now Council Member Annabel Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair. And before I ask my question, I would like my

         18  name to be added to the bill.

         19                 Mr. Heinzen, I'm interested in

         20  knowing, has the business community reached out to

         21  the Administration and raised concerns about how

         22  much this is going to cost?

         23                 MR. HEINZEN: It has not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: It has not?

         25                 MR. HEINZEN: I've been fairly well
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          2  involved in discussions on this and I haven't heard

          3  that. I haven't been in any conversations where

          4  that's been mentioned.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.

          6                 And then in terms of the

          7  Administration taking the steps to further examine

          8  the cost implications of this bill, do you have a

          9  time line of when that's going to happen, or just

         10  playing it by ear right now?

         11                 MR. HEINZEN: I understand your

         12  question. I don't have a specific time line, but I'm

         13  pretty confident that it's going to be followed up

         14  after this Committee with members of your staff, and

         15  members of the Public Advocate staff. I think we're

         16  going to be held to establishing a time line fairly

         17  quickly. That's what I anticipate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you for

         19  your testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         21  Council member.

         22                 Just a few other quick questions.

         23  Your honesty is appreciated that obviously you came

         24  into this particular issue quite recently. Are there

         25  any specific changes to legislation you want to
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          2  suggest now?

          3                 MR. HEINZEN: Not at this time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          5                 Let me just point out a few things.

          6  You said in your testimony that one of the options

          7  that might be meaningful here is to look at public

          8  outreach and education efforts.

          9                 I'd be interested if you have any

         10  elaboration on that. I will state a bias to begin

         11  with, I think this is a very difficult jurisdiction

         12  in which to successfully achieve public education

         13  just because there's so many competing messages

         14  flying around in the New York City environment that,

         15  you know, we can always try and that always helps,

         16  but I'm not sure it is as decisive as it might be in

         17  many other parts of the country when we attempt,

         18  unless we want to put huge resources into it, when

         19  we attempt to do public education. But do you have

         20  an idea in mind when you say that that might be part

         21  of addressing this problem?

         22                 MR. HEINZEN: Well, I think the public

         23  education, the first thing I would say is this is

         24  obviously the initial and crucial part of any public

         25  education.
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          2                 Secondly, the education would go both

          3  ways in terms of hopefully, I don't know if it would

          4  be through hearings, but some mechanism in which the

          5  Administration, and perhaps you, as well, can learn

          6  more about the actual extent to the problem and get

          7  a better handle on it.

          8                 I would anticipate that the Human

          9  Rights Commission would be involved in what we do. I

         10  don't know exactly what form that would take.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, two other

         12  points, and I know the Public Advocate has one more

         13  point.

         14                 You said earlier that there was some

         15  anecdotal evidence of this growing problem, and of

         16  the potential of discrimination in the workplace

         17  based on this societal trend. Do you have any

         18  particular examples you want to raise or any way of

         19  typifying that anecdotal evidence?

         20                 MR. HEINZEN: I don't think so. When I

         21  referred to anecdotal evidence, I was referring to

         22  some of the background materials that I saw in

         23  connection with this bill and some of the situations

         24  that are described in the EEO guidance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.
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          2                 Lastly, and we'll follow-up on this

          3  with you, but I think it is crucial as we begin this

          4  discussion, I think it is crucial we have these

          5  discussions quickly that we get an analysis from the

          6  Mayoralty of what we've seen recently at the Human

          7  Rights Commission, and recognition of the kind of

          8  complaints that have come in that refer to this type

          9  of reality and real close analysis of whether the

         10  existing protective classes are sufficient for this

         11  trend.

         12                 We may not agree but I think it's a

         13  very productive place to begin the discussion with

         14  an actual analysis of what has been happening at the

         15  City Human Rights Commission.

         16                 MR. HEINZEN: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That would be

         18  great and I appreciate it.

         19                 Now I will turn to the Public

         20  Advocate for her last comment before our next

         21  witnesses.

         22                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Again, just

         23  to cover a little bit of anecdotal stories, the

         24  gentleman that first called our office about this

         25  said that he had called the Human Rights Commission
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          2  and was told that his case was not covered. This was

          3  a gentleman who worked full-time and was taking care

          4  of his ailing mother and had to be available for her

          5  and had to leave work early and all that we talked

          6  about. And he had called the Human Rights Commission

          7  and told he was not covered under that.

          8                 I would also like to answer Council

          9  Member Palma's question. The business community in

         10  the form of the Women's Chamber of Commerce is

         11  supporting this bill and supporting our efforts. So,

         12  I think that's certainly a response from the

         13  business community.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 MR. HEINZEN: If I could say, Madam

         17  Public Advocate, we obviously, we hate to hear that

         18  someone goes to the Human Rights Commission or to

         19  any agency and has an experience like that. And I

         20  appreciate they went to you and obviously they

         21  should have gone to you, and I hope that we can work

         22  with you, if you can refer that to us, that

         23  situation to us, to examine it further, because we

         24  don't want that to happen. We don't want people to

         25  think that could happen. So, we're always interested
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          2  in improving the customer service aspect of all of

          3  our agencies.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

          6  appreciate that sensibility, and I would just

          7  caution, and, again, in over six years of watching

          8  the Human Rights Commission, I've increasingly

          9  wondered whether the focus on keeping the backlog

         10  low and keeping the number of resolved cases high

         11  has not become such an imperative that it has

         12  inhibited some of the openness that you would hope

         13  Human Rights Commission staff are showing towards

         14  people who call. I hope there is not a tendency to

         15  want to make cases go away because they add to the

         16  workload.

         17                 We've certainly heard when we've

         18  raised new potential categories that need

         19  protection, we have heard almost undiluted messages

         20  of that's going to add to our workload, we don't

         21  have the staffing for that, as opposed to that's a

         22  problem in our society we want to address, we'll

         23  figure out how to do it functionally. So, I think

         24  the Public Advocate's example is something that

         25  might be indicative of some larger trends, and I can
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          2  tell you are concerned. I would urge you to take a

          3  look at that while you're looking at these numbers

          4  as well.

          5                 MR. HEINZEN: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          7  much for your testimony.

          8                 I'd like to call up our next panel.

          9  Ed Ott of the Central Labor Council; Miranda Galindo

         10  of DC 1707, AFSCME; and Vernon Thorpe of the

         11  Transport Workers Union. And while they're coming

         12  up, I would just like to note earlier the Public

         13  Advocate was thanking members of her staff for their

         14  work on this hearing. I only thanked Christina, but

         15  Brian deserves thanks and Mary, who I've worked with

         16  over the years, and Mark Benoid (phonetic), who I

         17  have worked with for almost 20 years. So, thank you

         18  to everyone from the Public Advocate's staff. And we

         19  welcome this panel. Who would like to begin this

         20  testimony?

         21                 MS. GALINDO: Hello. Thank you. I'm

         22  reading this on behalf of G.L. Tyler, Political

         23  Action Director of District Council 1707, AFSCME.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Introduce

         25  yourself for the record.
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          2                 MS. GALINDO: My name is Miranda

          3  Galindo.

          4                 District Council 1707 AFSCME

          5  wholeheartedly supports Intro. 565-A as a necessary

          6  addition to the basic laws protecting our members

          7  and the general public from insidious forms of

          8  discrimination.

          9                 Intro. 565-A would enable caregivers

         10  to care for their loved ones without hearing

         11  retaliation and bias from their places of work.

         12                 District Council 1707 represents more

         13  than 25,000 non-profit social service employees, who

         14  as compassionate professionals, care for the

         15  elderly, our young, the mentally and physically

         16  challenged, in summation, the City's most vulnerable

         17  communities.

         18                 We empathize with those who have been

         19  discriminated against due to their caregiver status

         20  because our members have been victims of the same

         21  prejudice practices.

         22                 Our members' battles in the workplace

         23  are fought by union representatives which grievances

         24  and arbitrations, while non-unionized employees have

         25  little recourse against workplace abuse because they
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          2  are at-will employees.

          3                 This law expands the protections of

          4  employees to reasonable standards and layers the

          5  moral basis of protection to employees whose

          6  personal and financial obligations have been pushed

          7  to the limit due to care of a loved one.

          8                 By protecting their employment

          9  caregivers in already stressful environments have

         10  fewer reasons to worry about paying rent, putting

         11  food on the table and delivering other basic

         12  necessities to their families.

         13                 We urge the passage of Intro. 565-A

         14  as a continuation of the human and democratic rights

         15  that should be afforded to all in this nation.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         18                 Who would like to go next?

         19                 MR. THORPE: Good afternoon. Thanks

         20  for giving me the opportunity to testify or make

         21  commentary on behalf of Roger Toussaint, President

         22  of Local 100, and the 38,000 members of that union.

         23  Thanks very much, Chairman DeBlasio, and other

         24  members of the Council, and Madam Public Advocate

         25  Gotbaum.
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          2                 My name is Vernon Thorpe. I'm a

          3  Legislative Liaison for the Transport Workers Union,

          4  Local 100. And I'm here today, as I said, to testify

          5  on behalf of Roger Toussaint.

          6                 This initiative would fix an

          7  important gap in New York City's Anti-Discrimination

          8  Laws, which are grateful -- I'm sorry. In our

          9  culture there is a deep gap between the ideal and

         10  the real when it comes to family responsibilities.

         11  In the abstract, working people are expected to be

         12  responsible family members who provide the necessary

         13  care to those in their families who require it, be

         14  they children, elderly parents or relatives.

         15                 In the concrete, it is too often the

         16  case that having family responsibilities becomes a

         17  mark against an employee, an employee who must, from

         18  time to time, come in late or leave early in order

         19  to care for a dependent risk career limits or even

         20  termination regardless of the quality of his or her

         21  work.

         22                 This is so much the case, the

         23  pregnant women are at risk discrimination-based

         24  simply upon anticipation that they may be rendering

         25  care at a future time.
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          2                 Working people need to be able to

          3  take care of their family members, and they should

          4  not be on this account be placed at risk of

          5  employment discrimination, whether in hiring, in

          6  promotional and job security.

          7                 While the responsibilities of care

          8  giving may fall on any of us, they tend to fall

          9  disproportionately on women. Discrimination based on

         10  gender has been outlawed, yet discrimination based

         11  on caregiving offers an open back door to continued

         12  discrimination against women.

         13                 For these reasons, we support Intro.

         14  565-A, and look forward to its passage to close an

         15  important gap in New York City's anti-discrimination

         16  laws.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         19                 Mr. Ott.

         20                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         21  Public Advocate. I want to thank the Public Advocate

         22  in her office for taking this issue seriously and

         23  pushing it forward. I think the discussion alone is

         24  important for employers to hear.

         25                 A family care giver is often also a
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          2  full-time worker who is in need of support of their

          3  own. A caregiver can be a working mother, a loving

          4  and loyal son, or a new father encountering

          5  discriminatory workplace barrier that prevents them

          6  from being able to balance work and family

          7  responsibilities.

          8                 I'm going to go off of my testimony

          9  for a second. That's particularly important because

         10  we've constructed an economy that requires multiple

         11  incomes. On how people work this out, it's often

         12  assumed that, you know, that the woman is going to

         13  take care of a child or an elderly parent, and the

         14  fact is that in some families the discussion is that

         15  the woman is in a category where she makes better

         16  money and the better strategy would be for the man

         17  to take the responsibility. And employers are

         18  tremendously insensitive to men who make those

         19  commitments expecting that the woman is going to do

         20  it.

         21                 Under equal employment opportunity

         22  statutes, workers are entitled to be evaluated as

         23  individuals, not as members of groups. Caregivers

         24  are sometimes subjected to unlawful disparate

         25  treatment that violates this cardinal principle.
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          2  Family Responsibilities Discrimination has been

          3  defined in the form of sex discrimination based on

          4  gender stereotypes where employees are treated

          5  unfairly at work because of their informal

          6  caregiving responsibilities for children, elderly

          7  parents or relatives.

          8                 According to the Center for Work Life

          9  Law, New York is one of three states with the

         10  greatest number of Family Responsibilities

         11  Discrimination, also known as FRD lawsuits.

         12                 In many cases when discrimination

         13  occurs, the problem revolves around an issue of

         14  scheduling and can be resolved by accommodating

         15  individuals during times of need.

         16                 As with any other worker, a caregiver

         17  is only protected against discrimination if it is

         18  based on one of the protected characteristics that

         19  are specifically covered by the EEO laws.

         20  Discrimination based purely on parental or caregiver

         21  status is not protected.

         22                 However, the EEO laws do research

         23  discrimination against caregivers that is based on

         24  sex, race or any other protected status just as they

         25  reach claims brought by non-care givers that are
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          2  based on a protected status.

          3                 Disparate treatment, based on

          4  hostility towards workers who assume caregiving

          5  responsibilities is not limited to women and also

          6  impacts men who face different but equally harmful

          7  sex-based stereotypes.

          8                 For example, perceptions about men

          9  and caregiving might lead to a son's being harassed

         10  if he switches to a part-time schedule to take care

         11  of a terminally ill mother.

         12                 The reality is, all of us have family

         13  responsibilities that have or will interfere with

         14  our work and jobs at times.

         15                 A caregiver is a vital role, not just

         16  in our family's lives but in our society. The Human

         17  Rights Law fails to protect individuals against

         18  employment discrimination based on one's status as a

         19  caregiver, and should be amended to extend

         20  employment discrimination protection to New Yorkers

         21  who are actual caretakers.

         22                 Again, and I want to reemphasize

         23  this, the patterns of discrimination in the

         24  workplace are often subtle. It can destroy an

         25  advancement track of promotion, it can isolate one
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          2  in a workplace as a marginal worker in terms of the

          3  types of assignments they receive, and it extends

          4  from blue collar categories all the way to the

          5  highest level of professionalism and management. It

          6  is a really serious issue that we all need to come

          7  to terms with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 And to this whole panel, I'd like to

         11  specifically note, Mr. Ott, first of all, it seems

         12  to me what you described there towards the end of,

         13  you know, the choices people are making, and they're

         14  obviously the right moral choices to take care of

         15  people in need in their lives, very difficult

         16  choices, you know, the work is very time consuming,

         17  very difficult. But think about also the fact that

         18  the public, besides the fact that it's morally

         19  correct, the public benefits immensely because

         20  family members are taking the responsibility for

         21  their family member's need. If every one who wanted

         22  the easy way out threw up their hands and said,

         23  well, sorry, can't help you, well guess which entity

         24  would step in? The City of New York.

         25                 MR. OTT: Yes. Look, one thing we have
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          2  to come to terms with, you see it a lot in the

          3  retail industry, the employment, the business plan

          4  is intended to drive people towards public services

          5  so that the employer doesn't have responsibility. I

          6  mean, it happens in the health care area, it's

          7  happening in this area increasingly.

          8                 They expect you guys to pick up the

          9  tab. It's unacceptable. You know, a lot of people

         10  talk about family values, but when you really get

         11  down to it, work is designed to destroy the family

         12  network.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's right.

         14  Just to finish the point, that you know, we're too

         15  early in this trend to necessarily have all the

         16  numbers and all the analysis, but I think if you

         17  actually could quantify the impact it's having on

         18  the public sector, that people are doing the right

         19  thing in the immense amount of time and energy going

         20  into helping family members.

         21                 Now, I know as Chairman of the

         22  General Welfare working with ACS, I know what

         23  happens in the human cost, as well as the financial

         24  cost, when a child needs to be taken in by the City,

         25  for example. Or when someone is up in a shelter
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          2  because they're homeless. Well, think about that in

          3  terms of the huge numbers of people here who are

          4  grappling with this problem. Think about if they

          5  didn't.

          6                 MR. OTT: I could tell from Council

          7  Member White's former, previous questions. You know,

          8  he knows somebody that's gone through this. The

          9  example that we give here is somebody, a public

         10  relations person, her husband in a professional

         11  situation, completed discriminated against when he

         12  turns around to take care of his dying mother.

         13                 Work, look, employers are entitled

         14  under existing labor relations law to maintain

         15  production. The problem in this case is that they're

         16  increasingly refusing to accommodate by adjusting

         17  the schedules.

         18                 You can keep a full-time job and be a

         19  caretaker. But they refuse to accept that. And the

         20  real danger here is not that someone loses their

         21  employment, although that does happen, it's that it

         22  destroys their career. And that's what they really

         23  have to -- we have to try to get a handle on.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         25                 Council Member Lappin.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 I had a couple of questions that I

          5  can direct Mr. Ott, or whomever would answer, and

          6  really just to pick up on this concept of

          7  maintaining production, because this bill includes a

          8  requirement to make reasonable accommodation.

          9                 What would you view that to be? What

         10  would a reasonable accommodation be?

         11                 MR. OTT: In real life, and I've done

         12  a lot of worker representation on the job, in real

         13  life people work this out.

         14                 You know, it can be the accommodation

         15  of I've got to leave 4:00, I'll come in at 7:00 or

         16  7:30 or whatever it is. I mean, government came to

         17  this conclusion in the eighties, when the State and

         18  the City began to provide flex hours in certain

         19  situations, precisely to accommodate the real life

         20  of working families. It can be as simple as getting

         21  kids to school. One parent goes in early, one parent

         22  takes the morning side, one takes the afternoon

         23  side.

         24                 In a caregiver's situation you push

         25  towards flexibility. What you want to do is allow
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          2  the employer options without destroying someone's

          3  career. Where I think it becomes an issue is where

          4  an employer decides that their work is organized in

          5  such a way that it's unavailable to people in

          6  caregiver situations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, it's

          8  really essentially being flexible with the

          9  understanding that the employer is not going to lose

         10  that time. They're just being flexible enough to let

         11  the employee make it up.

         12                 MR. OTT: I would use the yard stick

         13  that if the employee, the worker declares that they

         14  can do the job, that that be proven in fact by them

         15  being given the chance.

         16                 Employers are working from the

         17  assumption that in these situations it will somehow

         18  undermine them. Mostly in terms of they're fearful

         19  that people will not show up at work, they're

         20  fearful that they'll have to take time off, et

         21  cetera.

         22                 Most working people in caregiver

         23  situations, they figure it out and they get it done

         24  and they do perform full-time jobs.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And if it's
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          2  something that really prohibits you from fulfilling

          3  the core responsibilities of the job, then that's a

          4  different story.

          5                 MR. OTT: Look, one of the things that

          6  we know, and everybody in this room knows it, if

          7  someone is unable to perform their job, the employer

          8  has the right to defend themselves, and the law is

          9  stacked in the favor of the employer, particularly

         10  in this State, it's an employment-at-will state.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay, thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. I

         14  think Council Member Lappin's point is very

         15  important, that all the Human Rights Law in

         16  protected categories, obviously it takes into

         17  account all of the objective factors, for example,

         18  someone having to perform the basic job

         19  responsibilities, so I think it's very important

         20  that you made that clarification, and by the way,

         21  equally true when we ban discrimination based on

         22  race or based on religion, of course it's in that

         23  same context. So, I think we should not, as this

         24  debate proceeds, let anyone try and muddy the waters

         25  of this by suggesting the Public Advocate's bill
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          2  would not recognize, like all Human Rights Law, that

          3  if someone isn't able to do a job, or if someone is

          4  not paying the rent when you're talking about

          5  housing accommodations, there are basic realities

          6  that supersede any effort at protection.

          7                 MR. OTT: Right, the law is designed

          8  to guarantee protection.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's right.

         10                 MR. OTT: That's the purpose.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to

         12  welcome Council Member Foster. Before you do though

         13  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I want to

         15  apologize for being late. I had some heating issues

         16  in the district that I had to address.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You were doing

         18  the right thing.

         19                 Your priorities were sound.

         20                 I know we have additional questions,

         21  first from the Public Advocate.

         22                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: First of

         23  all, I just want to put on the record that I'd like

         24  to thank the United Federation of Teachers and the

         25  Working Families Party, who have also supported this
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          2  bill and this legislation.

          3                 Anyone of you should answer this, but

          4  I was a little, I kept putting huh, h-u-h with a

          5  question mark down on my pad when the Mayor's

          6  representative was talking about the fact that

          7  existing law covers what we're talking about here,

          8  covers caregivers, and I would just like any one of

          9  you or all of you to express maybe anecdotal

         10  stories, or incidents in larger categories where you

         11  see that isn't true, like the question of when the

         12  man that originally called our office said he had

         13  called the Human Rights Commission and was told his

         14  case wasn't covered. So, it would be interesting to

         15  hear from your perspective.

         16                 MR. OTT: I don't really have one.

         17                 You know, one of the things that's

         18  interesting that's in our testimony, this State has

         19  the top three cases in the country. Let's look at

         20  the cases and see how they've been adjudicated in

         21  the end. What is the pattern? It's on record. It's

         22  not just the question of someone losing their

         23  employment is the big thing, the real thing is the

         24  career crushing advancement opportunities that are

         25  lost when someone gets in one of these situations
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          2  and they're marginalized within their current

          3  employment.

          4                 A lot of employment places employers

          5  are sophisticated enough not to fire in these

          6  situations, but it can really damage you. It can be

          7  a loss of income in that sense.

          8                 But when people start getting to the

          9  point where they're calling the Public Advocate's

         10  Office, or they're calling the Central Labor

         11  Council, there's a real problem out there, because

         12  what it means is the normal mechanisms that people

         13  would access to defend themselves in the workplace

         14  are not available. They're looking for something

         15  new. And I do think there's a legislative correction

         16  that's justified here. But I do think we should look

         17  at those cases. If we're in the top three, let's

         18  look at the cases. Here's a lawyer. They've got a

         19  bunch of lawyers sitting across the street, they can

         20  handle it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's going to

         22  be today's quote, "They've got a bunch of lawyers."

         23  That's a true statement. No one is going to dispute

         24  that one.

         25                 Council Member White.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Mr. Ott, you are 100 percent correct

          5  in terms of a case coming before my office where a

          6  person needed caregiving, and their job was on the

          7  line, they needed the medical insurance and things

          8  of that nature, and the employer figured well, you

          9  know, we don't have it in the book, we don't have it

         10  in the book, so we don't have to do it.

         11                 Well, my question to them was, have

         12  you had situations like this before? And the answer

         13  was yes. And were considerations given to

         14  individuals before? And the answer was yes. So, what

         15  would change from giving that consideration? And I'm

         16  happy to say that individual did get their medical

         17  coverage and the things that were due them, and a

         18  lot of people really don't -- well, too many people

         19  don't really understand what we're talking about,

         20  really when we talk about caregiving, they really

         21  don't understand unless they're the ones whose

         22  mother, father, sister, brother, child, is really

         23  involved in this.

         24                 I happen to think that the federal

         25  government and the State government did a wonderful
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          2  thing when they introduced flex time. I think flex

          3  time is appropriate, and I think that the City

          4  should have flex time, if we don't, I think we do,

          5  and I think that we should encourage employers to

          6  have flex time or some consideration. I'm not trying

          7  to tell them how to run their business. But I do

          8  believe that the end result that you speak of if you

          9  follow the track and the thinking that the three of

         10  you have presented, I think that an employer who has

         11  a policy or a procedure to assist caregivers over

         12  the short haul develops a loyalty from that employee

         13  and the kind of productivity that you can put in the

         14  category of dollars and sense, because that employee

         15  will remember in their time of need that employer

         16  assisted them, that they can depend on that

         17  employee, that that's the employee that really

         18  should be considered for elevation when something

         19  becomes available because they have shown their

         20  loyalty, their productivity, and all those things

         21  that are necessary in business. So, I think it's a

         22  parallel track and I think that somewhere along the

         23  line what we need to do is to show or try to

         24  motivate or get employee/employers to see the

         25  benefit of giving consideration to employees in
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          2  need.

          3                 MR. OTT: We agree.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And that's my

          5  statement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          7  Council member.

          8                 Now Council Member Foster.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I just wanted

         10  to apologize --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Your apology is

         12  more than accepted.

         13                 I wanted to first, before we call on

         14  Council Member Palma, welcome Council Member Brewer.

         15                 And now Council Member Annabel Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you. And

         17  I'm pretty sure Ed Ott or my other friend here can

         18  answer the question I have.

         19                 In regards to the FMLA and the

         20  federal law that covers the employees, in experience

         21  in the labor movement and negotiating contract and

         22  representing workers, has labor been able to

         23  accommodate certain accommodations for employees? I

         24  know in the health care industry, flex time has been

         25  one of the major accomplishments in contract
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          2  negotiations, whether they allow nurses to work

          3  12-hour shifts three days a week to make up their

          4  time, and appreciate how you guys have done that.

          5                 Vernon, my friend here.

          6                 MR. THORPE: Yes, well, FMLA, we've

          7  been able to use FMLA over the years to protect our

          8  workers, especially single-parent fathers, like I

          9  was. I was a single-parent father, so this issue is

         10  really important to me.

         11                 What we do is, the union advocates

         12  for the membership to the effect where the members

         13  could change their days off or move their time

         14  forward or backward a few hours, and that gives the

         15  member the flexibility to take care of their

         16  children or an older member of the family. We've

         17  been pretty successful.

         18                 When I was in private industry, you

         19  know, I had child care issues and it was really

         20  difficult. And like he said, the promotional track

         21  was cut off for me, and I ended up at the Transport

         22  Workers Union, but thank God for unions. But this

         23  issue is really important to my membership, who the

         24  males, the number of males who are single parents

         25  has increased, which is the reason we support, I
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          2  mean for other reasons, but this is one of the

          3  reasons we support this legislation.

          4                 MR. OTT: You know, it varies from

          5  industry to industry, but the truth is, there is no

          6  better protection in many ways than a collective

          7  bargaining situation with the union, because I mean

          8  25 years ago we started converting in industrial

          9  settings, all leave time to a bank of hours that

         10  people could access if they needed them, rather than

         11  just prescribe days off.

         12                 So, workers, where they're empowered

         13  to do so, they can aggressively work these things

         14  out with employers.

         15                 Again, though, we're talking about

         16  those hundreds of thousands of people in situations

         17  where the employers are aggressively indifferent to

         18  the family questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         20  Foster.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: You touched on

         22  a point with me with the increasing fathers. And I

         23  have seen it, of course we have a lot of single

         24  mothers, but we're seeing that with fathers. A quick

         25  question: is there a jurisdiction around the country
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          2  that you can point to that has gotten it right in

          3  terms of dealing with this protection of caregivers

          4  now that we have people living older, younger, if

          5  you know, or if there is an example of a company

          6  that has kind of gotten it right in terms of doing

          7  the flex hours and really making it beneficial, not

          8  just for what I would call maybe middle management

          9  or upper management, but those that really the

         10  companies depend on day-to-day that don't fall in

         11  those categories.

         12                 MR. OTT: There are some employers

         13  that are better than others. I don't want to get

         14  into names. And there's aspects of the State's

         15  program where people do have some flex hours which

         16  are helpful in these situations.

         17                 I think it's fair to say at this

         18  point everybody is kind of working it out. The

         19  demographics of an aging population are driving it,

         20  so you've got -- I think it was pointed out in the

         21  Public Advocate's statement, you know, people who

         22  are somewhere between 30 and 60 can be hit on both

         23  ends.

         24                 You've also got extended families and

         25  immigrant populations with large extended families.
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          2  I mean, we remember, some of this stuff grew out of
          3  bereavement leaves, where we had to extend to aunts

          4  and uncles because a real family life, aunts and

          5  uncles took on the role of primary caregivers and

          6  they were your mother and father, in fact, and

          7  employers had to be moved along. It took us a decade

          8  to begin to extend that.

          9                 So, I think we're at that point we're

         10  moving out. The point I think we have here is, can

         11  we make a legislative adjustment that contributes to

         12  the discussion? I think that we can.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. Last

         14  point. Mr. Ott, you and Chairman Labarbara are

         15  probably the two best-placed persons in New York

         16  City to think about the overall numbers affecting

         17  working people, both in the public sector and the

         18  private sector. Would you agree, even though we

         19  don't have exhaustive studies, it would be logical

         20  to assume this challenge is now affecting hundreds

         21  of thousands of New York City workers?

         22                 MR. OTT: Absolutely. Absolutely. I

         23  mean, I don't go anywhere where this is not an issue

         24  that's being discussed. It comes up in our Child

         25  Care Committee, because of the kinds of areas that
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          2  they work on, it comes up in our Health Care

          3  Committee, as we talk about how we're going to get

          4  to universal. One of the things people are really

          5  trying to get at is will universal care give me some

          6  kind of alleviation on these kinds of problems,

          7  because maybe there will be facilities that we can

          8  afford to send grandma to. It's that kind of thing.

          9  It comes up everywhere.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         11                 Thank you very much to this panel. It

         12  was extremely helpful testimony. We appreciate it.

         13  And we look forward to working together on this

         14  issue and this legislation going forward.

         15                 The next panel, Miriam Burns, Council

         16  of Senior Centers and Services of New York City, and

         17  a former City Council staffer; and Sherry Leiwant of

         18  A Better Balance.

         19                 Miriam, go ahead.

         20                 MS. BURNS: Good afternoon. I am

         21  Miriam Burns, Public Policy Associate with the

         22  Council of Senior Center and Services. We're an

         23  organization representing over 200 member agencies

         24  providing community-based services to 300,000 older

         25  New Yorkers.
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          2                 CSCS was instrumental in the creation

          3  of the New York City Family Caregiver Coalition in

          4  2004. This Coalition was created to bring together

          5  caregivers of all ages, circumstances and

          6  relationships, along with the Health Insurance Plan

          7  Health Plan of New York, CSCS has hosted two

          8  caregiver galas in New York.

          9                 We would like to testify today in

         10  support of Intro. 565-A. We are increasingly aware

         11  of the difficulties faced by family members trying

         12  to balance caregiving responsibilities with the need

         13  to work. Demographic shifts have left the heart of

         14  America's workforce caring for their aging parents

         15  and their children at the same time.

         16                 The commitment on the part of

         17  American employers to help employees meet their

         18  family obligations is essential to their long-term

         19  well-being.

         20                 America's population is aging.

         21  Thirty-five million Americans were 65 or older in

         22  2002 and by 2030 that number will rise to 47.5

         23  million.
         24                 The Mayor's 2030 plan projects 45

         25  percent increase in the elderly population of New
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          2  York City by the same year. Critically important is

          3  the significant increase in those individuals who

          4  are over age 75 who are significantly more likely to

          5  need some caregiver assistance, and our workforce is

          6  primarily going to be providing that care.

          7                 Family and friends informally provide

          8  80 percent of the care needed by elders at a savings

          9  of more than $25 billion to New York City alone.

         10                 The increase of women in the

         11  workforce has resulted in an increased number of

         12  dual-earner households. Studies have determined that

         13  more women are involved in caregiving roles than

         14  men. Many companies have adopted innovative job

         15  scheduling and other flexible policies and have

         16  supported the needs of caregivers.

         17                 The Family and Medical Leave Act of

         18  1993 contributed to a change in employer response

         19  and attitudes toward caregiving needs. However,

         20  there is currently a move by business to dilute the

         21  promise of FMLA as outined in a New York Times

         22  article of December 2nd, 2007.

         23                 The Labor Department has signals of

         24  supportive changes by soliciting public comment on

         25  changes to that law. The National Association of

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  Manufacturers contends the law is widely abused, has

          3  caused a staggering loss of work hours, as employees

          4  took unfair advantage of the law's intent. The

          5  National Association of Manufacturers suggest

          6  employees just use the time to extend vacation time.

          7                 There is a serious concern by

          8  advocates that the current Administration will issue

          9  new rules that cut back on FMLA time for those who

         10  need it, by, for example, narrowing the definition

         11  of serious health condition. This makes it even more

         12  critical that local and State governments increase

         13  protections for the caregivers in the employment

         14  arena.

         15                 Intro. 565-A addresses an important

         16  aspect of the caregiving conundrum by eliminating

         17  employment discrimination based on caregiving

         18  responsibilities. While these responsibilities

         19  disproportionately impact working women, their

         20  effects may be more pronounced among some women of

         21  color, particularly African-American women, who have

         22  a long history of working outside the home.

         23                 Women of color also may devote more

         24  time to caring for extended family members,

         25  including grandchildren and elderly relatives than
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          2  their white counterparts.

          3                 These responsibilities limit the

          4  employment opportunities, and are felt most

          5  profoundly by lower-paid workers who have much less

          6  control over the schedules and are more likely to

          7  face inflexible employer policies.

          8                 Family crises often lead to

          9  discipline or even discharge when a worker violates

         10  an employer policy in order to address caregiving

         11  responsibilities. For professionals,

         12  employee/employer discrimination may lead to the

         13  glass ceiling limits on career advancement. Indeed,

         14  home responsibilities can mean missing out on

         15  promotions and training at work.

         16                 More than 49 percent of caregivers in

         17  a Metlife study reported that caregiving affected

         18  their ability to advance on the job.

         19                 Moreover, their income was often

         20  severely reduced because of these obligations.

         21                 Nearly two-thirds of the respondents

         22  in the same study reported that caregiving had a

         23  direct impact on their earnings.

         24                 The total loss of wage wealth over a

         25  lifetime was estimated at more than $566,000.
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          2  Retirement income also suffered because it resulted

          3  in loss of Social Security benefits up to as much as

          4  $2,100 annually. Employers also reported a loss in

          5  employee productivity. Increases in turnover and

          6  absenteeism, which could total a significant amount

          7  of money.

          8                 The billions of dollars worth of

          9  family care giving in the out-of-pocket

         10  contributions of caregivers results in savings to

         11  the government and support for community-based care

         12  for the elderly and disabled. Unless we support

         13  employed family care givers the consequences for

         14  society are incalculable.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         17  much. And I appreciate the warning you give on the

         18  national situation, and I'm a little amazed that the

         19  National Association of Manufacturers is taking the

         20  stance they are, but a further reminder of the local

         21  level's responsibilities, I appreciate that.

         22                 Now, as we turn to Ms. Leiwant, I

         23  would just like to note, getting way into the

         24  hearing now you have some extensive testimony which

         25  obviously will be part of the formal record, could
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          2  you favor us by summarizing?

          3                 MS. LEIWANT: Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you so

          5  much.

          6                 MS. LEIWANT: I intended to do that.

          7                 My name is Sherry Leiwant. I am here

          8  testifying on behalf of A Better Balance, the

          9  Working Family Legal Center, which is a legal

         10  advocacy organization whose mission is promoting

         11  policies to help workers both support and care for

         12  their families. And I want to just start by

         13  congratulating the Public Advocate and her staff and

         14  the Council members for recognizing that there is a

         15  gap in the City's anti-discrimination laws, which

         16  although excellent, fail to protect New Yorkers with

         17  family responsibilities from job loss and

         18  discrimination, because of their need to care for

         19  loved ones.

         20                 This issue is real. It's definitely

         21  an issue. We have seen examples of it. A woman with

         22  advanced degree in psychology is demoted when she

         23  has a child because her employer believes she should

         24  be at home and spend more time with her children. A

         25  clerical worker is fired when he takes time off to
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          2  take his mother to the doctor. A mother who has

          3  worked for the same employer for 20 years refuses to

          4  work overtime on a night when she has to get to a

          5  school even for her child and is fired.

          6                 And I would just say, I would just

          7  like to say, in light of what the Mayor's

          8  representative stated, none of those instances would

          9  have been covered by existing discrimination law,

         10  anti-discrimination law. There is currently no

         11  federal or New York City law protecting workers in

         12  those kinds of situations and as, you know, we've

         13  talked about and we've heard, there has been an

         14  increase in attempts to use existing laws to

         15  vindicate rights, because of the grievous economic

         16  harm that often happens when this kind of

         17  discrimination exists.

         18                 I want to emphasize that it's not

         19  just mothers that come up before also. This is

         20  across the board something that affects men and

         21  women both, and it's not just an upper-income

         22  problem, which is often how it's talked about in the

         23  press.

         24                 Research shows that the majority, the

         25  vast majority of people who suffer Family
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          2  Responsibility Discrimination are not professionals,

          3  they're workers who are middle and lower income.

          4                 It's very important to have specific

          5  legislation that addresses this problem, and I just

          6  want to address that for a minute because it has

          7  come up.

          8                 There have been attempts, as I say,

          9  to use the existing civil rights laws, such as the

         10  federal Family and Medical Leave Act, Title 7 of the

         11  Civil Rights Act, and the Pregnancy Discrimination

         12  Act, to remedy discrimination against caregivers.

         13  But because these laws do not offer specific

         14  protection, many of these individuals fall through

         15  the cracks.

         16                 In order to challenge Family

         17  Responsibilities Discrimination under current law,

         18  victims have to show either that they were treated

         19  differently on the basis of gender stereotypes, and

         20  that can be very, very hard to show. They have to

         21  show, if there is pregnancy discrimination, that

         22  that happened during the pregnancy, not afterwards,

         23  and most of this kind of discrimination does happen

         24  afterwards.

         25                 And the FMLA, I am puzzled about how

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  often that came up in the Mayor's representative's

          3  testimony as protective. There is tremendous gaps in

          4  FMLA coverage, and it only covers employees during a

          5  protected leave, which many of the incidents of

          6  family responsibilities discrimination are not going

          7  to be right after a child is born or because of a

          8  really ongoing serious medical problem, it's going

          9  to be the day-to-day kind of care that people need

         10  to give to their children and to their aging parents

         11  and other family members.

         12                 The EOC guidance, which has also been

         13  referred to, is a powerful first step, but really

         14  under that guidance, an employer who treats both

         15  women and men with children equally poorly, relative

         16  to other workers who are unaffected by family

         17  responsibilities are not going to be found to have

         18  violated the law. So, because it's very complicated

         19  to make out cases under these other kinds of laws,

         20  it's very important to have a statute that protects

         21  caregivers as such, and New York City, with one of

         22  the most comprehensive and far-reaching civil rights

         23  laws in the country, should be a leader in this

         24  area.

         25                 And I just want to -- the idea that
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          2  there may be overlapping protections in a civil

          3  rights law is not a problem. It's actually a good

          4  thing. You would never say that you don't need a

          5  gender discrimination provision because there is a

          6  race discrimination provision and many women who are

          7  discriminated against are of color. That doesn't

          8  really make any sense.

          9                 So, this is something that is needed.

         10  And it will also, enactment of this would also send

         11  a clear message to employers and to everyone else in

         12  a society that discriminated against those with

         13  family responsibilities is wrong. Prior to the Civil

         14  Rights Act in 1964 prohibiting race and gender

         15  discrimination, there really wasn't a clear sense

         16  that those things were not, should not be done by

         17  the society, and I think that that is one of the

         18  most important things that can be accomplished by

         19  passing a law like this.

         20                 There is some confusion on the part

         21  of employers about whether they can or can't

         22  discriminate against people who have family

         23  responsibilities, and I think that this law would

         24  clearly send the message that it is wrong.

         25                 And just finally, I want to applaud
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          2  the inclusion of a reasonable accommodation

          3  provision here in this law. I think it's extremely

          4  important with respect to caregivers. It only builds

          5  on what's already there, already in our Human Rights

          6  Law, and it has worked so effectively with respect

          7  to those who have disabilities. And the fact that

          8  there is an undue hardships exception should really

          9  protect employers from really having problems with

         10  this.

         11                 And as I say, this has been a very

         12  successful model with respect to both religious

         13  accommodation and accommodation of our disabled

         14  workers and it's very important here with

         15  caregivers.

         16                 And employers, it's really a win/win

         17  situation for employers. It's been said many times,

         18  there are many studies that show that employees who

         19  are accommodated in their caregiving

         20  responsibilities are better employees and better

         21  workers. There's a real business case to be made for

         22  work family benefits and practices, and as stated by

         23  the Families and Work Institute, the importance of

         24  supportive work life practices is clear. When

         25  they're available, employees exhibit more positive
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          2  work outcomes, such as job satisfaction, commitment

          3  to employers and retention.

          4                 So, I just want to close by saying

          5  that New York City should be the leader in

          6  protecting families in the workplace. Alaska has

          7  done it, DC has done it, and we also should be here

          8  saying that families deserve protection and support,

          9  and I again thank this Committee and the Public

         10  Advocate for seeing that as important.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. I

         12  appreciate your testimony, and in particular

         13  appreciate the point, the reminder to all of us,

         14  we're lucky enough to be in some form or fashion all

         15  professionals pretty much here in this room, and in

         16  the professional world in New York City, there is

         17  some culture of being flexible in terms of people's

         18  needs. Some culture, by far, far from a consistent

         19  culture.

         20                 But as you pointed out, the more that

         21  someone is working class and dealing with hourly

         22  wage jobs, one thing or another, that flexibility

         23  falls away, and so if we really want to be

         24  consistent, we need to not only have flexibility and

         25  accommodation being made for those who are
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          2  privileged but across the board economically.

          3                 I want to also thank you. I have

          4  heard about the work you're doing in general, and I

          5  think it's timely. I'm glad there is an organization

          6  looking at what is obviously now becoming sort of a

          7  tidal wave of change in our society and something we

          8  deeply need to act on. And it's, again, very sad to

          9  know that one of the only things that did try and

         10  address this issue, Family and Medical Leave, is now

         11  under assault, so that just points out how much our

         12  work is cut out for us. So, thank you.

         13                 MS. LEIWANT: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, our next

         15  panel, Toni-Anne Carulli, New York Families for

         16  Autistic Children, and Ellen McHugh of Parent To

         17  Parent.

         18                 We welcome you. Who would like to go

         19  first?

         20                 MS. CARULLI: I will go first. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 Good afternoon. My name is Toni-Anne

         23  Carulli. I'm an Executive Board Member of New York

         24  Families for Autistic Children, and the mother of an

         25  autistic son.
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          2                 I am here to represent thousands of

          3  parents like myself that have been discriminated

          4  against in the workplace due to the extra care that

          5  our special needs children have.

          6                 My son Steven was diagnosed with

          7  autism at the age of three. Steven's diagnosis

          8  changed my life in many different ways. In addition

          9  to the immediate shock and heartache in knowing that

         10  my son will never be able to live a normal life, in

         11  time it was clear that many other obstacles would

         12  affect my life as well.

         13                 One of them being that as a parent of

         14  a child with autism, I am also disabled. Disabled in

         15  such a way that affects my every day life in the

         16  workplace, and will do so for the rest of my life.

         17  Because Steven's diagnosis and his special education

         18  needs, I started to on a consistent basis get

         19  reviews of work that were influenced by the number

         20  of days that I needed to take off due to Steven's

         21  autism. Evaluations, IEP meetings, parent/teacher

         22  meetings, parent training meetings were now an

         23  integral part of my life.

         24                 Home programming, socialization

         25  groups, doctors, psychiatrists and psychological
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          2  visits are among my daily routine now. Mandatory lab

          3  visits scheduled every other month for blood work to

          4  assure that my son's liver is not being affected by

          5  the medications that he must take for the rest of

          6  his life.

          7                 Illnesses such as ear infections,

          8  digestive problems, asthma and allergies that all

          9  special needs children are more prone to take up

         10  most, if not all of my sick and vacation time,

         11  leaving me with no choice but to take numerous

         12  unpaid sick days.

         13                 This in turn led to warnings that my

         14  job was at risk due to my absenteeism. This is very

         15  humiliating to say the least. You see, the corporate

         16  world doesn't care about personal problems, only

         17  that their work is not being completed in a timely

         18  fashion and that my productivity is down.

         19                 My son's special needs are clearly

         20  defined by his diagnosis. Finding child care for a

         21  disabled child is harder, if not next to impossible,

         22  and much more expensive as compared to finding child

         23  care for a normally developing child.

         24                 There are long waiting lists at

         25  agencies for after school respite help, and the only
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          2  real assistance comes from family members who are

          3  not always available at the last minute.

          4                 I am by trade a mortgage underwriter

          5  for the past 21 years. The past ten years have been

          6  stressful to a degree I can't even begin to explain.

          7  To have to defend myself time and time again to my

          8  bosses, who are clueless as to what is really

          9  involved in raising a disabled child, is very, very

         10  discouraging. But our hands are tied, and we must

         11  deal with life on life terms.

         12                 As an example, of which I have many,

         13  a couple of years back I was lucky enough to

         14  interview with a woman who had an inkling of my

         15  situation. Her sister was disabled and she had
         16  watched her mother have the same problems, same

         17  problems and issues that I have. She was sympathetic

         18  to my needs and did her best to accommodate my

         19  situations without upper management knowing.

         20                 Until she was transferred to another

         21  department, at which time my reviews reflected only

         22  that the number of days that I had taken off were

         23  not satisfactory, and I was denied even the smallest

         24  cost of living increase in salary. During that

         25  summer, unfortunately I had a back injury which kept
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          2  me out of work for an additional three months. I was

          3  forced to use my family time. Being that family time

          4  is not a paid source of, you know, source of time

          5  off.

          6                 MS. McHUGH: You got stuck again.

          7                 MS. CARULLI: I got stuck again, yes.

          8  But it does guarantee your position upon your

          9  return. When I did return, a few days later I was

         10  fired for my absenteeism and for my track record.

         11                 My home at that point went into

         12  foreclosure. With the help of my family members, I

         13  was able to dig myself out and get my life back

         14  together and my home back together.

         15                 My next job is very similar in

         16  situation. Having to take extended lunch hours to

         17  ensure that someone was home to take my son Steven

         18  off the bus and wait for my 15-year-old daughter to

         19  get home from school so that she could assist me in

         20  after school care, caused some negative responses

         21  from my co-workers.

         22                 However, this also became an issue

         23  because my daughter has a life to lead, and I am not

         24  going to take that away from her.

         25                 Trust me, none of this makes for a
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          2  healthy working or home environment. I was also let

          3  go from this job for excessive absenteeism. I am now

          4  out of work in an industry that has major problems,

          5  so finding a job is very hard.

          6                 I have had to claim bankruptcy again,

          7  and my home again is in foreclosure. The stress that

          8  this causes affects every aspect of my life.

          9                 Please, we need your help in enabling

         10  parents with disabled children to lead a healthier

         11  and more productive life.

         12                 With the mental ability and strength

         13  to take care of our special needs children, without

         14  the trials and tribulations of being discriminated

         15  against in the workplace.

         16                 I have at least three other job

         17  situations that were unfair in the handling of my

         18  situation. Without help from you and the City

         19  Council this problem is just going to get worse.

         20  When my son was diagnosed ten years ago, the ratio

         21  of children born with autism was one out of 2,500.

         22  Today, in the past ten years, it has risen to

         23  epidemic proportions. In 2007, one out of every 150

         24  children are diagnosed with autism. This will also

         25  increase the number of parents that are and will be
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          2  affected in the workplace. Without tolerance,

          3  acceptance and help for our situation, these

          4  families will all be discriminated against time and

          5  time again.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. And

          8  I just wanted to say, your testimony is extremely

          9  powerful and really points out how important this

         10  is. And I just think what we were talking about

         11  earlier, you know, people who choose to do the right

         12  thing really are heroic. It's not easy, what you're

         13  doing, and, you know, a lesser person would have

         14  thrown up her hands a long time ago, and society and

         15  local government should be applauding you and

         16  supporting you because you are doing the right thing

         17  by your family.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 Ms. McHugh. Oh, sorry, Helen Foster.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thanks. I'll

         21  just be brief. I actually -- my first cousin, her

         22  second born has autism, and it really has been a

         23  family approach in his care. Fortunately enough I

         24  guess, her husband makes enough money, but the other

         25  aspect of it is that, literally child -- we're his
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          2  child care because you have to understand it, live

          3  through it, know it, what people think is him

          4  bugging out or whatever is really his way of

          5  soothing himself or comforting himself.

          6                 But my question would be, how would

          7  flex time have helped you? Or what would have helped

          8  the situation? Because clearly you had more than a

          9  lot on your plate, but how could it have helped, you

         10  know, letting you do flex time or having days where

         11  you worked a lot of hours so that you could have

         12  other days off? What would have been most beneficial

         13  for you?

         14                 MS. CARULLI: All of it, to be quite

         15  honest. To be able to get him on the bus, without

         16  having somebody else to do it for me. To be able to

         17  get him off of the bus without interfering in my

         18  daughter's life, or, you know, being able to go back

         19  to work.

         20                 Working late. Working from home.

         21  Having child care.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And those are

         23  all things that could have been done in, like it

         24  wasn't physically necessary for you to be at work to

         25  do the work type of thing?
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          2                 MS. CARULLI: Child care, you know,

          3  within the office environment, like they do within

          4  the government agencies, would help tremendously.

          5  Because finding child care for these children, it's

          6  not like you can leave them with the kid next door

          7  or even an adult next door, because they can't

          8  protect themselves. They can't defend themselves.

          9  They can't even tell you if something happened to

         10  them. And it's just a very, very hard situation. But

         11  he's my son and I love him --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Of course. Of

         13  course.

         14                 MS. CARULLI: And I have to take care

         15  of him.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Of course.

         17  Thank you very much for sharing that with us.

         18                 MS. CARULLI: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         20  Council member.

         21                 Now I'd like to turn to the Public

         22  Advocate.

         23                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Your story

         24  is really compelling.

         25                 MS. CARULLI: Thank you.
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          2                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I just

          3  wondered, at any point did you try to turn to any of

          4  the organizations, like the Human Rights Commission

          5  or any of the entities that -- you may not have been

          6  here when the Mayor's Counsel was speaking about how

          7  you probably or could have been protected, and I

          8  just wondered if you did make any attempts to?

          9                 MS. CARULLI: I did make attempts,

         10  yes.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Could you

         12  elaborate a little bit on that?

         13                 MS. CARULLI: I had sent letters and

         14  e-mails, you know, requesting assistance, but I

         15  never got responses. I never got responses.

         16                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         19                 Ms. McHugh.

         20                 MS. McHUGH: Hello. How are you?

         21                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Hi, Ellen.

         22                 MS. McHUGH: My name is Ellen McHugh.

         23  I am the parent of a young man with a disability,

         24  and up until last year the caretaker of a father who

         25  was aging. I also work for Parent To Parent of New
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          2  York State. We have a grant across the state to work

          3  with families whose income is below $40,000, to

          4  provide them information, resources and referrals.

          5                 The direct impact of something like

          6  this on me when my son was younger would have given

          7  me, to go to your question, the time to sit down at

          8  meetings, so that theoretically at least, and on

          9  paper provisions for services could be made for my

         10  son's after school sessions, therapists,

         11  transportation and also for my ability to go to the

         12  hospital to talk to social workers, and other people

         13  at the hospital who were dealing with a discharge

         14  plan for my father.

         15                 I have to tell you that in a world

         16  where I am, I am very much accustomed as a

         17  supervisor of six people to allowing folks the

         18  flexibility to come and go and work at home. And I

         19  know this is going to sound dumb and naive, but I'm

         20  like shocked and appalled, aghast and agogued

         21  (phonetic), I don't know how to describe it, that

         22  someone else who is raising children would say to a

         23  mother or a father with a child with a disability

         24  that's too bad, you can't come back here anymore.

         25                 I can only give you the most recent,
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          2  and this is in the last week, which is why this is

          3  such an important hearing, a nine-year-old with

          4  autism, the mother retired from the Post Office,

          5  because the government office was giving her, her

          6  supervisor was giving her some guff about coming and

          7  going and attending meetings.

          8                 A 20-year-old with DD, I shouldn't

          9  say that, that's alphabet soup, developmental

         10  disabilities and mental retardation was non-verbal

         11  and non-ambulatory, his mother is a trained social

         12  worker, she was let go from the hospital for

         13  nonattendance.

         14                 A 14-year-old brother of a typically

         15  developing young man was asked to leave school

         16  because he was being depended upon by his mother to

         17  go pick the child up, and he would leave in the

         18  afternoon, last period, because most of the time his

         19  last period was either music, art or study hall, and

         20  the AP at the school asked him to leave. Another

         21  glaring issue which people don't talk about too much

         22  is in the private school systems how many schools

         23  open and close rather suddenly and leave children

         24  exposed and the Board of Education, and I'm not

         25  going to go there, but they are required to assume
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          2  responsibility for these children and this kind of

          3  stuff just echoes back as you go through life.

          4                 You also create a subculture of

          5  people who are constantly dependent upon the

          6  kindness of strangers and while strangers can be

          7  very kind, strangers have very limited resources to

          8  offer other people. So, the bigger issue for most of

          9  our parents is just to get to work and to maintain

         10  their lives. And since there are people who are

         11  making $40,000 or less, their employers are not the

         12  least bit interested in hearing that they need time

         13  off, funded or unfunded, because their employers are

         14  usually not there, they're usually in factory

         15  situations, and the supervisor on task has to be the

         16  person with the flexibility to allow the individual

         17  to come in and out of the office or the job

         18  placement without too much guff. I don't know how

         19  else to say it and be polite.

         20                 I can't urge you enough to pass this.

         21  I'm sure that there are labor organizations that

         22  support it, as well as employers who don't. I think

         23  that there can be a compromise worked out. Sometimes

         24  we have worked it out so that six hours of every

         25  month are devoted to a parent's ability to get to
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          2  and from offices to meetings or sessions with the

          3  child. Other times we've worked it out with

          4  hospitals where meetings are scheduled for the

          5  parent at seven in the morning. It's us working it

          6  out, I think that reasonable people can come up with

          7  reasonable accommodations and that's what the law

          8  requires.

          9                 I really thank you for the

         10  opportunity to participate in this and hope that you

         11  will be able to get the support to pass the bill.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         14  Thank you very much. We appreciate the work you do

         15  and your testimony.

         16                 Okay, thank you to this panel. We

         17  very much appreciate you being here and we will

         18  continue to work with you on this legislation.

         19                 The last panel, it's a single person

         20  actually, if she's still here, Kenya Abrayo

         21  (phonetic), New York Women's Chamber of Commerce. Or

         22  if someone else is here on her behalf, I don't know?

         23  Let me note we also have written testimony from Sage

         24  that will be entered into the written record. So,

         25  one more time, is anyone here on behalf of New York
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          2  Women's Chamber of Commerce? I know they were at the

          3  press conference earlier. Well, we'll get their

          4  testimony separately.

          5                 So, I'd like to thank everyone who

          6  participated. Thank you, again, to the Public

          7  Advocate and my colleagues and staff, and I'd like

          8  to wish everyone a very happy holidays and we will

          9  continue working together on this very important

         10  issue.

         11                 This hearing of the General Welfare

         12  Committee is now adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 6th day of December 2007.
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